

**Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association
Washington Chapter 11-6**

Bylaws

Revision A



Table of Contents

I.	Name and Emblem	3
II.	Mission and Objectives	4
III.	Membership	5
IV	Rules Of Conduct.....	9
V.	Membership Dues	11
VI.	Meetings	12
VII.	Chapter Officers, Staff and Duties.....	14
VIII.	Elections.....	18
IX.	Detachments	20
X.	Communications/Correspondence/Media.....	22
XI.	By-Laws and Standard Operating Procedures (SOP)	23
XII.	Dissolution of Chapter 11-6.....	24
Annex A		25

* Denotes addition to Chapter Bylaws
** Denotes By-Law Changes from Nationals 2017

I. Name and Emblem

A. The name of the organization is: Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association (CVMA) Washington Chapter 11-6 and identified as a State Chapter of the National CVMA. The principal location of Chapter 11-6 is: Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW) post 7952, 1369 George Washington Way, Richland, WA 99356.

The principal address of the Chapter may be changed by amendment of these by-laws. The location in Washington State may only be changed through approval of the State, Regional Representatives, and the National CVMA Board of Directors.

B. Washington Chapter 11-6 is organized to operate exclusively as a charitable organization for veterans and their families, and will seek to be organized under Section 501(c) 19 of the Internal Revenue Code.

C. ** The emblem/logo used by the CVMA is the sole property of the CVMA. The CVMA patch or logo cannot be reproduced without approval from the National Board of Directors (NBOD), prior to the logo being used in any manner of sales or marketing. Any item(s) given the features the full copyrighted logo may then only be sold to the full members of the Association. Any modification to the logo will be submitted for review. The emblem of the CVMA is in the shape of a skull encompassed by the following colors: **RED**, representing the blood that has been shed on the battlefield. **MILITARY GOLD**, representing all branches of the military service of the United States. **Black**, representing the heavy hearts possessed for those who gave their lives and for those that are considered missing in action (MIA) or prisoners of war (POW). The skull and ace of spades represents the death that war leaves in its wake. **

II. Mission and Objectives

A. The Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association Chapter 11-6 is formed for the betterment of communication and camaraderie between other Motorcycle Associations, Veterans Organizations, and or Motorcycle Groups.

B. The objectives of the Chapter are:

1. To promote interest in various forms of motorcycle activity associated with Veterans.
2. To create and maintain camaraderie among Combat Veterans from all U.S. Branches of Service and its allies.
3. To support Veteran Organizations and other Motorcycle Groups.
4. To raise awareness for the plight of POWs, MIAs and their families, Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD), Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI) and other combat related medical conditions.
5. To conduct Chapter functions and activities in a manner befitting the members of the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association as well as the association's Support and Auxiliary Members.
6. To encourage a better understanding of motorcycle riding as a constructive sport among members of the public, press, and law enforcement agencies.

III. Membership

Definitions: The term “**Good Standing**” shall be defined as any person who has fulfilled the requirements for membership in the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association, who is not currently under disciplinary review or probationary status for disciplinary reasons, who has paid the necessary dues and conformed to the requirements as set forth in these bylaws.

**** Member will be assigned to a chapter upon application approval.** Member’s initial assignment of chapter will be in the State of physical residence, **and closest Chapter**. Once membership is approved, he or she can request in writing for a change of Chapter to the gaining and losing State Representative. Chapter affiliation to any Chapter of his or her choosing may be requested, to include a Chapter in another state that shares a common border. If the distance is shorter, the request will be approved. The member will only have all rights as a Full Member in the State that they claim membership in. **

A. Full Members (FM):

1. Must be of good character.
2. Must have served in the military in a combat theater of operations or a foreign war.
3. Must provide proof of service by providing a DD214 or ERB/ORB or similar supporting documentation which will be verified by National BOD.
4. Must own and operate a motorcycle of 500cc or larger.
5. Full members may vouch for only one (1) Support member per year.

B. Support Members (SUP):

1. A veteran or active/reserve member of the U.S. Armed Services who has not served in combat or a foreign war.
2. Must be of good character.
3. Must own and operate a motorcycle of 500cc or larger.
4. Submit their application, with proof of service, through a CVMA FM who has been a FM for no less than one year. The FM submitting the application must vouch for the support member. Support members are required to have either ridden a minimum of 3,000 miles with their sponsor, attended three CVMA events or be known by their sponsor for a minimum of 6 months. Only 1 support member can be vouched for per year per FM.
5. May wear a small CVMA support patch on the front of their vest and/or a 10" support patch on the back of their vest, which is supplied by the submitting Full Member.
6. Cannot hold a Command Position, but is eligible for Staff Positions.
7. ** Can vote on Chapter/Detachment business, except on National CVMA business. **
8. May serve on committees as designated by the Chapter Commander (CO).
9. Support Members will be at a ratio of 1:10, 1 Support Member per 10 Full Members, based on state membership.

C. Auxiliary Members (AUX)

1. Must be of good character.
2. Must be a spouse, widow, or widower of a FM who is in good standing with the CVMA.
3. Cannot sponsor an additional Auxiliary member
4. Cannot hold a Command Position, but is eligible for Staff Positions.
5. Cannot vote on CVMA business.
6. May serve on committees as designated by the Chapter Commander (CO).
7. Must support the efforts of ALL branches of the United States of Americas Armed Forces and the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association.
8. Auxiliary Life Membership requires three years active in the CVMA. Auxiliary member must be in good standing for all three years and minimum participation of one sanctioned CVMA event per year is required, one of which must be a National Auxiliary meeting. The

Full member sponsor must already be a Life Member (or concurrently seeking Life Member status). Cost for Auxiliary Life Membership is \$100. If an Auxiliary Life Member quits or is removed for any reason, is no longer qualified as an Auxiliary member (e.g. divorce), or the sponsor member quits or is removed from the CVMA rolls for any reason, no refund will be made.

D. Resignation

1. Should a Full Member resign they will have a five (5) day grace period in which to rescind their resignation without penalty. After the five (5) day grace period the member will have to re-apply for membership as a new member which will require National BOD approval.

E. Medical Retirement

1. Active members currently in good standing with the CVMA who after one (1) year become infirm, disabled, or otherwise unable to ride their motorcycles will be able to be medically retired, keep their back patch and still have full voting privileges. Must also purchase the 'Retired Member' patch.
2. The cost of Retired Membership is the same cost of a full member Current National Dues Rate.
3. Retired members cannot hold CVMA Officer Position.
4. ** Support members in **good standing** with the CVMA who becomes infirm, disabled or otherwise unable to ride their motorcycles will be able to keep their patch and be retired as a member in good standing with the CVMA. Members must submit medical documentation and a minimum of one year as a member and/or NBOD approval is required. **

F. Life Membership

1. Requirements for application for Life Membership:
2. Three (3) years of active membership in good standing in the CVMA
3. Must have participated in at least one sanctioned CVMA event per year
4. Must have attended at least one National Meeting as one of the sanctioned events
5. The cost of Life Membership is the Current National Dues Rate for Life Members.
6. ** Life members, if for health reasons can no longer ride can at their discretion, remain members in good standing with full voting privileges and can keep their patch. **
7. If a Life Member resigns or the member is removed from the CVMA for any reason no refunds will be made.
8. ** Support Life Membership requires three (3) years **active** and in **good standing** in the CVMA. Support members must at the minimum participate in one (1) sanction CVMA event per year as required. One of which must be a National meeting. Cost for Support Life membership is \$100. If a Support Life member quits for is removed from the CVMA rolls for any reason, no refund will be made.

IV. Rules of Conduct/Misconduct

- A. By applying for membership in the CVMA; members are giving the CVMA and the National BOD the right to verify membership qualifications and the DD214 or ERB records.
- B. Each member should attend a minimum of one (1) hosted CVMA event per year. This can also be an event in any member's state if prior approval is obtained by the State Rep from the governing body of the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association.
- C. All members (Full, Support, and Auxiliary Members) must abide by all CVMA National, State, Chapter and/or Chapter By-Laws, protocols, policies or SOPs.
- D. All members must conduct themselves in a manner that is not an embarrassment to the CVMA or the United States of America.
- E. All members must possess a valid motorcycle endorsement on their state driver's license and carry proof of insurance for their motorcycle as required by their state of residence.
- F. Misconduct
- a. In the event of misconduct by any member, under the by-laws of the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association, the Chapter/Detachment Commander may request a ten (10) suspension from the State Rep. A misconduct is defined as failure to abide by the by-laws of the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association and any organization that the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association supports.
 - b. While serving suspension:
 1. The suspended member is prohibited from attending CVMA functions/meetings.
 2. The suspended member is prohibited from wearing his/her CVMA Back patch.
 3. The suspended member is prohibited from voting at local or National CVMA elections.
 4. The suspended member is prohibited from holding a CVMA Officer position.
 - a. A suspended member will have seven (7) days to appeal his/her suspension. Such an appeal shall be in writing and directed to the appropriate Regional Representative via the State Representative.
 - c. Further defined as - Bringing dishonor upon the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association in action, words, or deeds. Always remember **WE ARE NOT, NOR DO WE CLAIM TO BE A MOTORCYCLE CLUB! WE**

DO NOT HAVE COLORS! WE DO NOT PROSPECT! We do have membership fees.

G. Any Full Member who is still a member of the Armed Forces of the United States and attended the previous year's national meeting, but cannot, due to military deployment to a combat zone, attend the current year national meeting will be given credit for the National and will be authorized a rocker for the National patch that will read, for example, DEPLOYED 20XX. (Where XX is the current year)



V. Membership Dues

- A. Annual dues for Full Members are the currently published National dues rate of \$20.00 for Full Members.
- B. Annual dues for Auxiliary Members are the currently published National dues rate of \$10.00 for Auxiliary Members
- C. Annual dues for Support Members are the currently published National dues rate of \$10.00 for Support Members.
- D. Annual state dues of \$5.00 per member (e.g Full, Support, Retired, Life, and Auxiliary) are assessed for all Washington Chapter 11-6 members to fund the State Representative (SR) business travel reimbursement. These funds are forwarded to the State Rep home chapter by July 15th of each year.
- E. State dues for each member are payable by June 30th of each year, paid to the Chapter/Detachment Treasurer. Failure to pay dues by the due date will result in an entry being made in the member's 201 file reflecting "member not in good standing for failure to pay chapter dues". Additionally, until the dues are paid the member will be denied chapter/detachment voting privileges. Member does not lose voting rights on national issues, bylaw proposals, or state/regional/national officers so long as national dues are current.
- F. Annual National dues are assessed January 1st for all members and are payable by June 30th of each year. Members failing to pay dues by July 1st will be discharged for "Dues Expiration" and moved to "State Inactive" roles. Reinstatement is according to National BOD policy.
- G. Dues for active duty members, upon request, may be waived by National providing the Member is serving in an area of combat operations. Active duty members stationed in CONUS or OUTCONUS (not in combat operations) are required to pay all annual dues. The member requesting waiver of dues must send all relevant information to their Chapter Commander along with their request in order to be correctly evaluated by the National BOD. Information provided must not compromise their unit's mission directives or violate security protocol.
- H. Dues for new members joining between July 1st and December 31st will be for the current dues year ONLY (rev 6/2010)
- I. An original 45 National Chapter Member is not required to pay National Dues.

VI. Meetings

- A. A quorum of members shall be equal to those members present at any given meeting.
- B. Reference to Chapter Officers shall also mean Detachment Officers.
- C. The Chapter/Detachment Commander (CO) or next senior officer present will chair Chapter meetings.
- D. The Chapter/Detachment Commander, or any two Chapter members, may call for special meetings as required.
- E. Roberts Rules of Order (Parliamentary Procedures) will be established and utilized during all meetings.
- F. Meeting minutes are maintained by the Chapter Secretary as indicated under Officer Duties. Meeting minutes are distributed to the members within two (2) weeks of each meeting and are then approved by the membership at the next monthly meeting. Once approved they are posted on the State CVMA website, Chapter 11-6. If the Secretary is not present, the Chapter/Detachment Commander will record the minutes or assign a member to record minutes.
- G. Items subject to a vote require a simple majority of voting members, except as otherwise noted in the by-laws.
- H. ** Each member must attend a minimum of at least one (1) event hosted by the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association per year. This requirement may be met by attending any one (1) of the following within the CVMA dues calendar year. Members not in compliance will have their status (via 201 file) annotated as 'Not in good standing due to attendance'.
 - a) Any National, Regional or State sanctioned CVMA event.
 - b) Any chapter CVMA function that includes the sponsoring CEB participation.

Any member that was deployed at any time during the year is exempt from meeting this requirement. Life Members and medically retired members are exempt from meeting this requirement. Chapter unassigned members are also required to attend but must ensure that the State representative is aware and able to document attendance at the event.

Chapter Officers are responsible for 'looking after' their members and should make efforts to ensure all members are aware of this requirement and assist their membership in attendance of one of these events. This bylaw change will become effective starting July 1, 2017 and be measured on the CVMA dues calendar year from July 1 through June 30th each year. **

- I. State, Regional, and National conventions/meetings are held annually. Members are encouraged to attend these meetings as the business conducted at these meetings affects all CVMA members of Washington Chapter 11-6.



VII. Chapter Officers, Staff and Duties

- A. Chapter Executive Board
1. Chapter Officers make up the Chapter Executive Board (CEB) and are responsible for the execution of the By-Laws, Standard Operating Procedures, and other adopted or prescribed policies.
 2. Nominees for office must be **active**, in **good standing**, and have been a Full Member for at least one (1) year.
 - a) This time requirement is waived for the event of standing up a Chapter or a new Detachment.
 3. Officers must remain active members in good standing during their term of office.
 4. The term of office for Officers is two (2) years per position.
 5. Officers may hold consecutive terms, except as prescribed by the National BOD.
- B. The Chapter Executive Board (CEB) consists of:
1. Chapter Commander (CO)
 2. Executive Officer (XO)
 3. Secretary (SEC)
 4. Sergeant-at-Arms (SAA)
 5. Treasurer (TREAS)
 6. Public Relations Officer (PRO), if filled by a full patch member
- C. Officer Duties
1. Chapter Commander (CO)
 - a) Presides over meetings of the Chapter
 - b) Responsible for all committees and delegations
 - c) Issues the call for regular and special Chapter meetings
 - d) Schedules and conducts regular elections
 - e) Ensures all proceedings are held in accordance with Chapter By-Laws and Chapter SOP
 - f) Carries out directives of the National BOD, the Regional Representative (RR) and the State Representative (SR)
 - g) Assigns members to assist in the Audit of the Chapter records and financial matters

- h) Appoints delegates to represent the Chapter at conventions, meetings, rallies, or other assemblies that may be deemed necessary, as approved by the State Rep (delegates are authorized to exercise only those powers specifically vested in them by the CEB).
 - i) Appoints FMs, SUP, or Aux Members to serve on committees as necessary
2. Executive Officer (XO)
- a) Assists the CO as necessary
 - b) Assumes the duties of the CO in his/her absence
 - c) Oversees committees as delegated by the CO
3. Secretary (SEC)
- a) Records and maintains the minutes of all general and special Chapter meetings
 - b) Maintains official copies of Chapter By-Laws, SOP, and other policies
 - c) Maintains the Chapter State and Federal Business License and non-profit status documentation, if required.
4. Treasurer (TREAS)
- a) Collects dues and all other forms of income to be collected by the Chapter
 - b) Establishes all financial accounts and maintains records of books of accounting
 - c) Makes payments from the Chapter funds when necessary or directed by the CEB
 - d) Signatory for all checks/drafts from the Chapter financial accounts and makes regular reports of the Chapter financial status to the Executive Board and the members. The two (2) signature accounting system requires the signature of the CO or XO in addition to the Treasurer
 - e) Develops an annual budget for the Chapter during the first quarter of each calendar year as requested by the CEB
 - f) Conducts, with the SAA and an appointed member (not an officer), an annual Audit of the Chapter Books and Records in August each year
 - g) Prepares the Chapter Financial Report for submission to the State Rep no later than February 1st of each year (The Chapter Finance Report must include a list of all donations

made, any funds raised from sponsored events, all donations received from sources outside CVMA and a detailed list of Chapter expenses)

- h) Coordinates with the Chapter Quartermaster the transfer of funds as required for the “Chapter Store”

5. Sergeant-at-Arms (SAA)

- a) Maintains order during Chapter meetings
- b) Checks member ID cards and maintains sign in logs for each meeting
- c) Ensures By-Laws and Policies are adhered to
- d) Assists the Treasurer with the annual audit of the Chapter Books and Records
- e) Assists in enforcement of any disciplinary action as directed by the SR or CEB
- f) ** Is the SR or CEB point of contact (POC) for all discipline issues and assumes all duties assigned by the CEB. **
- g) Responsible for qualifying and supervising Road Captains and for the coordination of Chapter rides
- g) * Responsible for making sure all members comply with safety rides (check rides), if the member has not been on a motorcycle for a while due to injury or illness. *

D. Staff Positions

1. Staff positions serve important functions to the operation of the Chapter. They are not part of the Executive Chain of Command. They may be filled by appointment by the CO or through regular Chapter elections. There is no requirement to fill these positions if the CEB chooses to accomplish these duties through other means.
2. Staff positions may be held by any member.
3. Chapter Staff positions are:
 - a) Webmaster
 - b) Quartermaster
 - c) Road Captain
 - d) Public Relations Officer
 - e) Chaplain

E. Staff Position Duties

1. Webmaster
 - a) Responsible for maintaining and updating the Chapter 11-6 website as approved by the CEB
2. Quartermaster
 - a) Responsible for operating a Chapter Store
 - b) Maintains a selection of patches, stickers, coins, etc. as directed by the CEB
 - c) Coordinates with the Treasurer sufficient funds for operation
3. Road Captain
 - a) Responsible for planning, coordinating and leading Chapter rides as approved by the SAA
4. Public Relations Officer
 - a) Responsible for all Chapter 11-6 publicity, in conjunction with, and approved by the CO or XO
 - b) Serves as Chapter Historian
 - c) Maintains and publishes all pictures, newspaper articles, TV and radio announcements and the Chapter website
 - d) This position may be filled by a support or auxiliary member, and at that time the position reverts to a Staff Position for that appointment.
5. Chaplain
 - a) Will provide spiritual guidance to the Members
 - b) Will perform the invocation at the Chapter meeting
 - c) ** Will attend CEB meeting, when requested by the CEB **
 - d) ** He/she is a non-voting advisory position, no members will serve more than eight (8) years as the Chaplain nor may hold any other Officer position while assigned as the Chaplain. **

VIII. Elections

- A. Chapter Officers elections to include Detachment Officers occur during the month of July every year.
- B. ** Candidates for positions (ONLY for NBOD, Regional, and State offices) must declare their intentions a minimum of 90 days prior to the designated election date unless the election is to fill a vacated position due to a previous election. **
- C. Officers may hold a term of office for two (2) years per position.
- D. ** Nominees for office must be active, in good standing, and have been a FM for a minimum of one (1) full year of CVMA membership, every attempt must be made to fulfill the one year requirement. In the event no member with the time requirement chooses to run for a position a member with six (6) months may be selected. A unanimous vote of the quorum present is required for a member with less than a year to assume the position. **
- E. Officers must remain active, in good standing, for the term of their office.
- F. Officers may be elected to consecutive terms, except as directed from National BOD.
- G. Elections are staggered so that the CO, SAA and PRO (if Full Member) are elected in even numbered years and the XO, SEC and TREAS are elected in odd numbered years. Staff positions need not follow this rule and elections/appointments will be every two years or as necessary.
- H. ** No Chapter/Detachment Officer will be elected with less than a majority of votes cast in an election. In elections for officer positions where there are more than two (2) candidates, where no single candidate receives a majority of votes. The two (2) candidates who receive the most votes will compete in a runoff election. The CO will only vote in the event there is a tie. Unless it is CO's position, then the XO will take over. **
- I. If an officer chooses to run for an office other than his/her current office they must resign their position. If he/she is unsuccessful during the elections he/she will revert to a FM and shall immediately be eligible to run for any vacant office, including the office they just vacated. Officers resigning their positions for other than election purposes will not be eligible for an elected office until the next regularly scheduled officer elections or through special appointment per item H.
- J. Should an officer resign (spoken or written) from office, but decides to stay after. They will not be able to take back their resignation, the remaining CEB may appoint a replacement to serve until the next Chapter/Detachment meeting

where a Special Election will be held for that position. The new officer for the remainder of the original term will hold the office.



IX. Detachments

- A. Detachment may be formed under the authority of a State Chapter with the approval of the State, Regional Representatives and the National BOD.
1. A Detachment must have eight (8) full members. It must have a designated Detachment CO as their representative.
 2. The Detachment will maintain communication with the sponsoring Chapter via the sponsoring Chapter SAA.
 3. A Detachment is supervised by the sponsor Chapter.
 4. Detachment members are carried as members of the sponsor Chapter.
 5. Detachment Officers will be elected by the Detachment per Article VIII Elections.
 6. Detachment Officers are just that, Officers for the Detachment. The Detachment does not have a CEB.
 7. Detachments will elect officers:
 - a) Detachment Commander (required)
 - b) Detachment Executive Officer (not required)
 - c) Detachment Secretary (required)
 - d) Detachment Treasurer (optional)
 - e) Detachment Sergeant-at-Arms (required)
 8. The Detachment CO will preside over all Detachment meetings and report meeting minutes and business to the sponsor Chapter.
 9. The Detachment CO will appoint a Detachment Liaison to the sponsor Chapter.
 10. The Detachment CO or the Liaison will attend sponsor Chapter meetings and make periodic progress reports.
 11. The Detachment may petition the sponsor Chapter for Chapter status when they have obtained fifteen (15) full members. Chapter approval must come from the sponsor Chapter, the State, and the Regional Representative.

12. The Detachment will not be closer than an hour ride from an established Detachment or Chapter unless approved by the State Rep and the National BOD.
13. A Detachment may be dissolved if it cannot maintain their eight (8) required members. This is by authority of a Chapter CO with the approval of the State, Regional Representatives, and the National BOD.



X. Communications/Correspondence/Media

A. Communication

1. Chapter Officers and their respective Detachment Officers will maintain open communication lines with each other.

B. Correspondence

1. Correspondence to or between Chapter Officers, their Detachments and the general membership will be communicated to the State Rep.
2. Correspondence to or between sister Chapters or other CVMA Chapters throughout the Association will be communicated to the State Rep.
3. Emails or Forum communication shall not contain any form of slander, derogatory comments or negative opinions. Participation in this kind of behavior could be considered as misconduct.

C. Media

1. All interaction with the media will be done by the Chapter/Detachment PRO.
2. In the absence of the PRO interaction with the media may be handled by any available Chapter/Detachment Officer.

XI. By-Laws/Amendments and Standard Operating Procedures (SOP)

A. By-Laws/Amendments

1. These By-Laws may be altered or repealed and new By-Laws adopted at the regularly scheduled **May** meeting of Chapter 11-6 by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members present.
2. Any Full Member of the Chapter may submit a By-Law Change Proposal. The proposal must be submitted to the Secretary in writing no later than one week prior to the regularly scheduled **April** meeting of the Chapter. The proposal will be presented to the membership for review at the April meeting.
3. Should any Chapter 11-6 By-Laws conflict with CVMA National By-Laws or CVMA Washington State Chapter 11 By-Laws those By-Laws will take precedence over the Chapter 11-6 By-Laws and the Chapter 11-6 By-Laws will be altered to reflect the changes at the next **May** meeting
4. **** Amendments to these By-Laws will be submitted to the National BOD for review and approval before inclusion in the By-Laws. Once approved by the NBOD any changes will become effective on the first (1st) day of the month following approval. ****

B. Standard Operating Procedures

1. SOPs may be altered or repealed and new SOPs adopted at any regularly scheduled Chapter meeting by a two-thirds vote of the Members present.
2. Any full member of the Chapter may submit a SOP Change Proposal. The proposal must be submitted to the Secretary in writing no later than one week prior to the next regularly scheduled meeting. The proposal will be presented to the membership for review at the following meeting.

XII. Dissolution of Chapter 11-6

A. Upon dissolution of the Non Profit Corporation, Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association Chapter 11-6, assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue code or the corresponding section of any future Federal Tax Code. Any assets not so disposed shall be disposed of by a court of competent jurisdiction of the county in which the principal office of the corporation is located. Disposal shall be made exclusively for exempt or public purposes, or be made to such organizations as the court shall determine to be organized exclusively for such purposes.



ANNEX A.

I. Regional Representative

A. Regions

1. Alabama, Georgia, Mississippi, S. Carolina, & Florida.
2. Washington DC, Kentucky, Maryland, N Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia, & W. Virginia.
3. Connecticut, Delaware, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, Rhone Island, & Vermont.
4. Illinois, Indiana, Michigan, Minnesota, Ohio, & Wisconsin.
5. Arkansas, Louisiana, Oklahoma, Texas.
6. Iowa, Kansas, Missouri, & Nebraska.
7. Montana, N Dakota, S. Dakota, & Wyoming.
8. Arizona, Colorado, New Mexico, & Utah.
9. California, Hawaii, & Nevada
10. Alaska, Idaho, Oregon, Washington.
11. ** Germany, Korea, & Overseas Theater. **

II. Regional Rotation for National Meeting

- A. 2018 - Region 5
- B. 2019 - Region 10
- C. 2020 - Region 1
- D. 2021 - Region 7
- E. 2022 - Region 2
- F. 2023 - Region 8
- G. 2024 - Region 3
- H. 2025 - Region 5
- I. 2026 - Region 9
- J. 2027 - Region 4
- K. 2028 - Region 10
- L. 2029 - Region 6